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1. 2EEHR 1. CORPORATE INFORMATION
A28 E) 2 5E it 3 g R 437 74 Clarendon The registered office of the Company is located at Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11, House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda.
Bermuda °
RAAEREN > AREEREHE R H| 52 During the year, the Group was involved in the following
% principal activities:
o HEERTERL KHAMAY) - # «  wholesale and retail of Chinese and other medicines,

R E i B U R EE b health products and dried seafood products

c  AERMELEYREER +  production and sale of biotechnological products
o E Xi'd -y . property investment
c P4 rp B R IR TS . provision of Chinese clinical services
HER L BRYER A Al B Welcome In the opinion of the directors, the ultimate holding company
Success Worldwide Ltd. > #% 2 &) J3 it is Welcome Success Worldwide Ltd., which is incorporated
U J R Lo BE B B M AT o in the British Virgin Islands.
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IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED
STATEMENTS OF STANDARD
ACCOUNTING PRACTICE (“SSAPs”)

The following recently-issued and revised SSAPs and
related Interpretations are effective for the first time for

the current year’s financial statements:

. SSAP 9 (Revised): “Events after the balance sheet
date”
. SSAP 14 (Revised): “Leases”

. SSAP 18 (Revised): “Revenue”

. SSAP 26: “Segment reporting”

. SSAP 28: “Provisions, contingent liabilities and
contingent assets”

. SSAP 29: “Intangible assets”

. SSAP 30: “Business combinations”

. SSAP 31: “Impairment of assets”

. SSAP 32: “Consolidated financial statements and

accounting for investments in subsidiaries”

. Interpretation 12: “Business combinations —
subsequent adjustment of fair values and goodwill
initially reported”

. Interpretation 13: “Goodwill — continuing
requirements for goodwill and negative goodwill

previously eliminated against/credited to reserves”
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IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED
STATEMENTS OF STANDARD
ACCOUNTING PRACTICE (“SSAPs”)

(continued)

These SSAPs prescribe new accounting measurement and
disclosure practices. The major effects on the Group’s
accounting policies and on the amounts disclosed in these
financial statements of those SSAPs and Interpretations
which have had a significant effect on the financial

statements, are summarised as follows:

SSAP 14 (Revised) prescribes the basis for lessor and lessee
accounting for finance and operating leases, and the required
disclosures in respect thereof. Certain amendments have
been made to the previous accounting measurement
treatments, which may be accounted for retrospectively or
prospectively, in accordance with the requirements of the
SSAP. The revised SSAP requirements have not had a
material effect on the amounts previously recorded in the
financial statements, therefore no prior year adjustment has
been required. The disclosure changes under this SSAP have
resulted in changes to the detailed information disclosed
for finance leases and operating leases, which are further

detailed in notes 28 and 33 to the financial statements.

SSAP 26 prescribes the principles to be applied for reporting
financial information by segment. It requires that
management assesses whether the Group’s predominant
risks or returns are based on business segments or
geographical segments and determines one of these bases
to be the primary segment information reporting format,
with the other as the secondary segment information
reporting format. The impact of this SSAP is the inclusion
of significant additional segment reporting disclosures

which are set out in note 4 to the financial statements.

SSAP 29 prescribes the recognition and measurement
criteria for intangible assets, together with the disclosure
requirements. The adoption of this SSAP has resulted in no
change to the previously adopted accounting treatment for
intangible assets and the additional disclosures that it
requires have not been significant for these financial

statements.
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IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED
STATEMENTS OF STANDARD
ACCOUNTING PRACTICE (“SSAPs”)

(continued)

SSAP 30 prescribes the accounting treatment for business
combinations, including the determination of the date of
acquisition, the method for determining the fair values of
the assets and liabilities acquired, and the treatment of
goodwill or negative goodwill arising on acquisition. The
SSAP requires the disclosure of goodwill and negative
goodwill in the non-current assets section of the
consolidated balance sheet. It requires that goodwill is
amortised to the consolidated profit and loss account over
its estimated useful life. Negative goodwill is recognised
in the consolidated profit and loss account depending on
the circumstances from which it arose, as further described
in the accounting policy for negative goodwill disclosed in
note 3 to the financial statements. Interpretation 13
prescribes the application of SSAP 30 to goodwill arising
from acquisitions in previous years which remains
eliminated against consolidated reserves. The adoption of
the SSAP and Interpretation has resulted in a prior year
adjustment, further details of which are included in note 15
to the financial statements. The required new additional
disclosures are included in notes 15 and 30 to the financial

statements.

SSAP 31 prescribes the recognition and measurement
criteria for impairments of assets. The SSAP is required to
be applied prospectively and therefore, has had no effect
on amounts previously reported in prior year financial

statements.

SSAP 32 prescribes the accounting treatment and
disclosures for the preparation and presentation of
consolidated financial statements, and has had no
significant impact on the preparation of these financial

statements.

w2 OH A A -2001/2002 4F



B 75 ¥ R MY 5E

Notes to Financial Statements

ERE AR

31 March 2002

3.

A=+—H

FTESHBRRABE

mREE

APAB AR T IRIR AW S st B R
s A Rl wt R S A A m R B 2
PR B i B AR B R TS AR R IR
SR A A B e T B R
AT EE GERE R T30 JIE B A EA
HE o

HEREE

KA B R LA AN ) B HL Y
RABE_FEFT_HF=A=+t—H1
AR RS ERR o AF P SOE E A
2 6§ o 2 RSB0 I SO A 2 R
Bodsa a2 EEMAY - ALH
AVACIE PSRN NN S Y 3
B C IR A5 1 IR B

K8 2 &
W oS 2> ) 2oy A ) R L ] 4 A2 o
PR S B B BUR - DA H SRS HE HL
Mt 2 A F e

AR F T BR JE  ) 2 E 4 RAS(E
BT AT BUE R SR -

BEgAd
Tt ) Sz R 2 ) OO (] A A
Al > THEAEEHRIEEA LA D120%
Je A 5 S HE > 3 AT AT (O
N2 e

A AR 23 W o 2 )R WS B AR 2 AR
B At o A R NG R 40 R AR R
i o AL AGBE N R 2R IR
RESE & FHA TR A 0 Ak 2 B FHE
AT AT (L Ml FRAR R AR B AL
% o

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Statements of Standard
Accounting Practice, accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except for
the periodic remeasurement of investment properties and

certain investments, as further explained below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year
ended 31 March 2002. The results of subsidiaries acquired
or disposed of during the year are consolidated from or to
their effective dates of acquisition or disposal, respectively.
All significant intercompany transactions and balances

within the Group are eliminated on consolidation.

Subsidiaries
A subsidiary is a company whose financial and operating
policies the Company controls, directly or indirectly, so as

to obtain benefits from its activities.

The Company’s interests in subsidiaries are stated at cost

less any impairment losses.

Associates

An associate is a company, not being a subsidiary or a
jointly-controlled entity, in which the Group has a long term
interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting
rights and over which it is in a position to exercise significant

influence.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and
reserves of associates is included in the consolidated profit
and loss account and consolidated reserves, respectively.
The Group’s interests in associates are stated in the
consolidated balance sheet at the Group’s share of net assets
under the equity method of accounting, less any impairment

losses.

Hong Kong Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2001/2002
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Associates (continued)

The results of associates are included in the Company’s
profit and loss account to the extent of dividends received
and receivable. The Company’s interests in associates are
treated as long term assets and are stated at cost less any

impairment losses.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries
represents the excess of the cost of the acquisition over the
Group’s share of the fair values of the identifiable assets

and liabilities acquired as at the date of acquisition.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised in the
consolidated balance sheet as an asset and amortised on
the straight-line basis over its estimated useful life of 10 to
15 years.

In prior years, goodwill arising on acquisitions was
eliminated against consolidated reserves in the year of
acquisition. The Group has adopted the transitional
provision of SSAP 30 that permits goodwill on acquisitions
which occurred prior to the financial year commencing on
1 April 2001, to remain eliminated against consolidated
reserves. Goodwill on subsequent acquisitions is treated

according to the new accounting policy above.

On disposal of subsidiaries, the gain or loss on disposal is
calculated by reference to the net assets at the date of
disposal, including the attributable amount of goodwill
which remains unamortised and any relevant reserves, as
appropriate. Any attributable goodwill previously
eliminated against consolidated reserves at the time of
acquisition is written back and included in the calculation

of the gain or loss on disposal.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Goodwill (continued)

The carrying amount of goodwill is reviewed annually and
written down for impairment when it is considered
necessary. A previously recognised impairment loss for
goodwill is not reversed unless the impairment loss was
caused by a specific external event of an exceptional nature
that was not expected to recur, and subsequent external
events have occurred which have reversed the effect of that

event.

Negative goodwill

Negative goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries
represents the excess of the Group’s share of the fair values
of the identifiable assets and liabilities acquired as at the

date of acquisition, over the cost of the acquisition.

To the extent that negative goodwill relates to the
expectations of future losses and expenses that are identified
in the acquisition plan and that can be measured reliably,
but which do not represent identifiable liabilities as at the
date of acquisition, that portion of negative goodwill is
recognised as income in the consolidated profit and loss

account when the future losses and expenses are recognised.

To the extent that negative goodwill does not relate to
identifiable expected future losses and expenses as at the
date of acquisition, negative goodwill is recognised in the
consolidated profit and loss account on a systematic basis
over the remaining average useful life of the acquired
depreciable/amortisable assets. The amount of any negative
goodwill in excess of the fair values of the acquired non-

monetary assets is recognised as income immediately.

In prior years, negative goodwill arising on acquisitions was
credited to capital reserve in the year of acquisition. The
Group has adopted the transitional provision of SSAP 30
that permits negative goodwill on acquisitions which
occurred prior to the financial year commencing on 1 April
2001, to remain credited to capital reserve. Negative
goodwill on subsequent acquisitions is treated according

to the new accounting policy above.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Negative goodwill (continued)

On disposal of subsidiaries, the gain or loss on disposal is
calculated by reference to the net assets at the date of
disposal, including the attributable amount of negative
goodwill which has not been recognised in the consolidated
profit and loss account and any relevant reserves as
appropriate. Any attributable negative goodwill previously
credited to capital reserve at the time of acquisition is written
back and included in the calculation of the gain or loss on

disposal.

Related parties

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the
ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other party or
exercise significant influence over the other party in making
financial and operating decisions. Parties are also
considered to be related if they are subject to common
control or common significant influence. Related parties

may be individuals or corporate entities.

Impairment of assets

An assessment is made at each balance sheet date of whether
there is any indication of impairment of any asset, or whether
there is any indication that an impairment loss previously
recognised for an asset in prior years may no longer exist
or may have decreased. If any such indication exists, the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is calculated as the higher of the asset’s

value in use or its net selling price.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is charged to the profit and loss account in
the period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a
revalued amount, when the impairment loss is accounted
for in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for

that revalued asset.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of assets (continued)

A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only
if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount of an asset, however not to an
amount higher than the carrying amount that would have
been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation), had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior

years.

A reversal of an impairment loss is credited to the profit
and loss account in the period in which it arises, unless the
asset is carried at a revalued amount, when the reversal of
the impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with

the relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.

Fixed assets and depreciation

Fixed assets, other than investment properties and
construction in progress, are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an asset
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use. Expenditure incurred after
fixed assets have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to the profit and loss
account in the period in which it is incurred. In situations
where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditure
has resulted in an increase in the future economic benefits
expected to be obtained from the use of the fixed asset, the

expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost of that asset.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each asset over its estimated useful life, after
taking into account its estimated residual value. The
principal annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:
Leasehold land Over the lease terms
Buildings 4.75%

Leasehold improvements Over the lease terms
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 9% to 33.33%

Motor vehicles 12.5% to 25%
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Fixed assets and depreciation (continued)

The gain or loss on disposal or retirement of a fixed asset
recognised in the profit and loss account is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of

the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents factory buildings, plant
and machinery and other fixed assets under construction.
It is stated at cost less any impairment losses, and is not
depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of construction
and capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed funds
during the period of construction. Construction in progress
is reclassified to the appropriate category of fixed assets

when completed and ready for use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings in
respect of which construction work and development have
been completed and which are intended to be held on a
long term basis for their investment potential, any rental
income being negotiated at arm’s length. Such properties
are not depreciated, except where the unexpired term of the
lease is 20 years or less, in which case depreciation is
provided on the carrying amount over the remaining term
of the lease, and are stated at their open market values on
the basis of annual professional valuations performed at
the end of each financial year. Changes in the values of
investment properties are dealt with as movements in the
investment property revaluation reserve. If the total of
this reserve is insufficient to cover a deficit, on a portfolio
basis, the excess of the deficit is charged to the profit and
loss account. Any subsequent revaluation surplus is credited
to the profit and loss account to the extent of the deficit

previously charged.

On disposal of an investment property, the relevant portion
of the investment property revaluation reserve realised in
respect of previous valuations is released to the profit and

loss account.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Intangible assets

Know-how

Know-how represents certain technological know-how
acquired during the course of the business. It is stated at
cost less any impairment losses and is amortised, using the
straight-line method, over its estimated commercial life of
not more than 15 years, commencing from the date when

the related products are put into commercial production.

Research and development costs
All research costs are charged to the profit and loss account

as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products
is capitalised and deferred only when the projects are clearly
defined; the expenditure is separately identifiable and can
be measured reliably; there is reasonable certainty that the
projects are technically feasible; and the products have
commercial value. Product development expenditure which

does not meet these criteria is expensed when incurred.

Deferred development costs are amortised using the
straight-line basis over the commercial lives of the
underlying products not exceeding 15 years, commencing
from the date when the products are put into commercial

production.

Leased assets

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title,
are accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of a
finance lease, the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at
the present value of the minimum lease payments and
recorded together with the obligation, excluding the interest
element, to reflect the purchase and financing. Assets held
under capitalised finance leases are included in fixed assets
and depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms and the
estimated useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of
such leases are charged to the profit and loss account so as
to provide a constant periodic rate of charge over the lease

terms.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leased assets (continued)
Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a
financing nature are accounted for as finance leases, but

are depreciated over their estimated useful lives.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted
for as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets
leased by the Group under operating leases are included in
non-current assets and rentals receivable under the operating
leases are credited to the profit and loss account on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where the Group is
the lessee, rentals payable under the operating leases are
charged to the profit and loss account on the straight-line

basis over the lease terms.

Long term investments

Long term investments are non-trading investments in
unlisted equity securities intended to be held for a continuing
strategic or long term purpose. They are stated at cost less

any impairment losses, on an individual investment basis.

When impairments in values have occurred, the carrying
amounts of the securities are reduced to their fair values, as
estimated by the directors, and the amounts of the
impairments are charged to the profit and loss account for
the period in which they arise. When the circumstances and
events which led to the impairments in values cease to exist
and there is persuasive evidence that the new circumstances
and events will persist for the foreseeable future, the
amounts of the impairments previously charged are credited
to the profit and loss account to the extent of the amounts

previously charged.

Short term investments

Short term investments are investments in listed securities
held for trading purposes and are stated at their fair values
on the basis of their quoted market prices at the balance
sheet date, on an individual investment basis. The gains or
losses arising from changes in the fair value of a security
are credited or charged to the profit and loss account in the

period in which they arise.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on a weighted average basis and,
in the case of work in progress and finished goods,
comprises direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of overheads. Net realisable value is based on
estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be

incurred to completion and disposal.

Cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement,
cash equivalents represent short term highly liquid
investments which are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which were within three months of
maturity when acquired, less advances from banks repayable
within three months from the date of the advance. For the
purpose of balance sheet classification, cash equivalents
represent assets similar in nature to cash, which are not

restricted as to use.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
significant timing differences to the extent that it is probable
that the liability will crystallise in the foreseeable future. A
deferred tax asset is not recognised until its realisation is

assured beyond reasonable doubt.

Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can

be measured reliably, on the following bases:

(a) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership have been transferred to the
buyer, provided that the Group maintains neither
managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership, nor effective control over

the goods sold;

(b) from the sale of marketable securities, on the
transaction dates when the relevant contract notes are

exchanged;
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3. TEETTHE @ 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

WA R (#) Revenue recognition (continued)
(c) HRALIRTS 2 Wi A € A B At IR 5 Iy (c) from the rendering of services, when the services are
RN rendered;
(d) FHAM AR EATE R ] LIRS (d) rental income, on a time proportion basis over the lease
terms;
(e) FLEMLARERMEEA ST LHE R (e) interest income, on a time proportion basis taking into
B SR 2R 4% 15 [ LU I RE B 5 account the principal outstanding and the effective

interest rate applicable; and

(f) R A & e ST B SR s RE (f) dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to
WF AR AR o receive payment has been established.

I Foreign currencies

HINMERE 5y TaHi 38 oy B Z ISR 8% o Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the applicable

IS Y RS R AEI RS rates of exchange ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary

BH 28 e AR A o S HE AR assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at

e RN R o the balance sheet date are translated at the applicable rates

of exchange ruling at that date. Exchange differences are

dealt with in the profit and loss account.

AR IR E IR - g MRS A 7] K8 On consolidation, the financial statements of overseas
N 2 BB ER A 28 subsidiaries and associates are translated into Hong Kong
R FHAETC o P T E L 2 5 dollars at the applicable rates of exchange ruling at the
BEI 13 T 0 V8 1 fa 4 T B R o balance sheet date. The resulting translation differences are

included in the exchange fluctuation reserve.

F s/ ELEBA WA A -2001/2002 F



B 75 ¥ R MY 5E

Notes to Financial Statements

ERE AR

31 March 2002

3.

A=+—H

FESHEERX @

BIKEF 5 E

A% £ [ AR 40 i v o o R B 4 w0
B 7 — T SR A A O ) P A R R
g (TEE st #]) - A8
AR 8200 - st # e —FRRg
T A — AR o KA R
RIFENET E L > MR AR E R
S ah ) 2 BRI FEA IRF 75 38 25 26 P 30
B o MERR AT EI0Y B A A A [ — 1R
W ATBUE SR o AR PR & AT
M AN H 2 AR AT AT
#1% > REEEINEE 5 iR B RS
BT - BIACSE H R £ 2 B BBt
A4 B R AR R A o

AL B PR NRILAE (TR ) &
A 2 B Je 2 R ) 4R B ZH 2 B b B
AR 2 o R AR B Tl o %5 K
TG EM A THEA MW - I
e R O R A R SR o % AR A
B wl B RO 2 A IR AR R DR o

T EEHR

B 5B Y RN A 2658 T7 i 4E R BR AN
FE I U P R B R o G R
TR B N2 - PAER 5
BUVES EZ I AR YE 5 R (i) A
8 43 HUAE By R ZE 43 J51 Y i R o

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Retirement benefits scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance, for those employees who are eligible to
participate in the MPF Scheme. The MPF Scheme has
operated since 1 December 2000. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and
are charged to the profit and loss account as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.
The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered fund.
The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme, except
for the Group’s employer voluntary contributions, which
are refunded to the Group when the employee leaves
employment prior to the contributions vesting fully, in

accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) are required
to participate in a central pension scheme operated by the
local municipal government. Contributions of the PRC
subsidiaries are made based on certain percentage of the
eligible employees’ salaries pursuant to relevant pension
regulations, and such contributions to the pension scheme

are charged to the profit and loss account as incurred.
SEGMENT INFORMATION

SSAP 26 was adopted during the year, as detailed in note 2
to the financial statements. Segment information is
presented by way of two segment formats: (i) on a primary
segment reporting basis, by business segment; and (ii) on a
secondary segment reporting basis, by geographical

segment.
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31 March 2002

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

The Group’s operating businesses are structured and
managed separately, according to the nature of their
operations and the products and services they provide. Each
of the Group’s business segments represents a strategic
business unit that offers products and services which are
subject to risks and returns that are different from those of
other business segments. Summary details of the business

segments are as follows:

(a) the sum yung and pharmaceutical products segment
sells Chinese and other medicines, pharmaceutical
products, health products and dried seafood products
to wholesalers and retailers in the general consumer

market;

(b) the biotechnological and transgenic products segment
engages in the production and sale of biotechnological

and transgenic animal-produced products;

(c) the property investment segment engages in
investment property holding and derives rental income
from properties located in Hong Kong and the PRC;
and

(d) the corporate and others segment comprises the
provision of Chinese clinical services and the trading

of marketable securities.

In determining the Group’s geographical segments, revenues
and results are attributed to the segments based on the
location of the customers, and assets are attributed to the

segments based on the location of the assets.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted at cost or
with reference to the selling prices used for sales made to

third parties at the then prevailing market prices.

F s/ ELEBA WA A -2001/2002 F



B 75 3R B AE

Notes to Financial Stat

CEE F=ZH=Z+—H
31 March 2002

4. 7HEER @
(@ ¥B78H

TR B I AL B L S8 7 I 2 0L
A AL ) BT EE

BB B SCE R -

nts

4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(a) Business segments

The following tables present revenue, profit/(loss) and

certain asset, liability and expenditure information for

the Group’s business segments.

350 Group
SERBR ENRRBERHR
Sum yung and Biotechnological and NERE LERE it o 58
pharmaceutical products transgenic products Property investment Corporate and others Eliminations Consolidated
2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001
TEr Ti#n TER T FEn T T T TEr Tt kg7 T
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS'000
M : Segment revenue:
ETHIER Sales to external
customers 53,953 35963 12989 B 2,356 2597 1,765 46 - - 71,063 39,006
EHAEMZBESR  Intersegment sales 187 90 - - - - - = (187) (90) - =
HMA Other revenue 1 6 156 = 159 1299 8,137 3,000 - - 8463 4303
ag Total 54,151 36,059 13,145 - 2515 3,89 9902 3446 (187) (%) 79,526 311
AES Segment results (1,307) (8,091) (5,465) = 1951 3482 (1,507) (1.981) (18328) (13,190)
FBRBEZ A Tnterest and dividend income 2840 5409
ATHRZUARERN  Unallocated revenue and gains - 1403
FFARZEL Unallocated expenses (1,736) (4,689)
BEER Loss from operating actvities (17,24) (11,067)
WENA Finance costs (6,385) (5.869)
ReiiER Loss before tax (23,609) (16936)
B Tax JEi] 1,640
At BB AR Loss before minority interests (23,176) (15296)
DUl Minority interests 3617 -
FRRMEREEEE  Netloss from ordinary activities
B attributable to shareholders (19,559) (15296)
MEHE Segment assets 31,886 16,260 130,057 106,839 4385 47750 97,557 117,654 (1,409) (293) 308476 285210
fREELE 2R Interests in associates - - - - - - 2311 3,788 - = 2311 3,788
31,886 16,260 130,057 106,839 4385 47750 99,868 11442 (1,409) (293) 310,787 288,998
US4 T Unallocated assets 4175 4175
Gt Total assets 314962 293,173
MEAR Segment iablites 1,649 8,489 19,461 20911 2070 1,167 23,684 31,667 (1,409) (293) 67455 61941
APARL AR Unallocated liabilities 148,553 137480
Al Total libilities 216,008 199,401
HbAgER - Other segment information:
AR Capital expenditure 2,735 5,176 15370 - - 2% 1,218 1468 - - 19323 6,670
bt Depreciation 2843 1911 1486 - 1 7 1113 59 - - 5449 2514
bidipiE Amortsaton of know-how - - 786 - - - - - - - 786 -
MR Tmpairment losses recognised
ZHfER in the profit and loss account - = - = - - - 2,000 - - - 2,000
25,558 11,184
HibFER e Other non-cash expenses - 37 [5) - - - 4,551 2,694 - o 4613 2931
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(b) Geographical segments
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31 March 2002

The following tables present revenue, loss and certain

asset and expenditure information for the Group’s

geographical segments.

AEE Group
BB Bl E A it & HEEH e
Hong Kong Elsewhere in the PRC Eliminations Consolidated
2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001
FEx Tt FET Tt FEx Tt FET Tt
HKS$000 HKS$000 HKS$000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS$000 HKS000  HKS$’000
SR - Segment revenue:
ETEIEF Sales to external customers 57,936 38,982 13,127 24 - = 71,063 39,006
HAtA Other revenue 8,193 4,205 270 100 - - 8,463 4,305
S B ST Total segment revenue 66,129 43,187 13,397 124 - = 79,526 43311
IR Segment results (13,087)  (13,145) (5,241) (45) - = (18,328)  (13,190)
BB P Bl E A it & HE e
Hong Kong Elsewhere in the PRC Eliminations Consolidated
2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001
FEx Tt FET Tt FEx Tt FExT Tt
HKS$000 HKS$000 HKS$000 HKS$000 HKS$000 HKS$000 HKS000  HKS$’000
HAt o G R Other segment information:
MR Segment assets 161,626 183,936 153,336 109,237 - = 314,962 293,173
AP Capital expenditure 3,953 6,665 15,370 5 - = 19,323 6,670
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5. BEHE - WARER 5.

BB A B 2 B HE (1
BRiB & RE e an e ) > 2RO
B 2 fE(E - BiBCEY T U B
AU o M B RS 4R B A A ] 2

A ERLY -

BOER S HADA BRI

TURNOVER, REVENUE AND GAINS

Turnover represents the net invoiced value of goods sold,
after allowances for returns and trade discounts; the value
of services rendered; and gross rental income received and

receivable from investment properties after the elimination

of all significant intra-group transactions, during the year.

follows:

An analysis of turnover, other revenue and gains is as

2002 2001
FET THE T
HK$°000 HK$°000
=20 Turnover
S8 KA G2 B Sale of sum yung and pharmaceutical products 53,953 35,963
A R B i RE (K] Sale of biotechnological and
il i 2 S 8 transgenic products 12,989 -
WERE—FH B Property investment - rental income 2,356 2,597
HoAth Others 1,765 446
71,063 39,006
Hipg A Other revenue
FILE e A Interest income 2,611 5,409
IEN PN Dividend income 229 =
AT TR = 2 EH Write-back of residual purchase consideration
FRAB B B 13 0 payable to third parties 4,806 =
Hij #2415 5 70 Write-back of rent and miscellaneous expenses
SEAS 2 A A e A TEL4E 1) payable on former director quarter 1,296 =
JH A TR 2 T 4 Write-back of remuneration and disbursements
)&k e payable to former directors 827 =
JRE WA B 2 7 B 8 A [ i Reversal of provision for doubtful receivables - 3,000
oAty Others 1,534 6
11,303 8,415
7 Gains
HEGH E i E 2 FF Gain on disposal of short term listed investments - 1,403
A A B A Other revenue and gains 11,303 9,818
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6. LOSS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

The Group’s loss from operating activities is arrived at after

IHHE - charging/(crediting):
2002 2001
FET THIT
HK$°000 HK$°000
HELFEZ A Cost of inventories sold 39,628 22,118
PEALIRFS 2 A Cost of services provided 732 314
reg Depreciation 5,449 2,514
FAIT N ok Amortisation of know-how* 786 -
WS B BHEE S i * Research and development expenditure** 639 -
PR S ** Amortisation of goodwill** 396 -
B b R 2 AR Minimum lease payments under operating leases
FH A B ARAH B4 2 4R in respect of land and buildings 11,135 7,943
1% B R Auditors’ remuneration 1,000 700
B TRA (NdE Staff costs (excluding directors’
HHME—MEES) - remuneration — note 8):
ek LE Wages and salaries 18,397 9,559
IBRRGEFT B R Pension scheme contributions 676 230
19,073 9,789
S [ R 2 R Loss on disposal of fixed assets 129 242
ARG 2 A A Provision for impairment in value of
long term investments - 2,000
B b AT RCE A B Loss on changes in fair values of short term
LS Fd 7! listed investments 1,736 2,689
B EYEZ Deficit/(surplus) on revaluation of
WA, (BER) investment properties 200 (1,299)
WM ETHEE 2 28] Gain on disposal of short term listed investments - (1,403)
LN TR = 2 EE Write-back of residual purchase consideration
FRAB B B 43 ) payable to third parties (4,806) =
Hll #2152 Write-back of rent and miscellaneous expenses
fF 2 Fl 4 KA B ##$ 5] payable on former director quarter (1,296) =
JH A TR 2 T 4 Write-back of remuneration and disbursements
Y&k e payable to former directors (827) =
JRE AT R R BR A A [ e Reversal of provision for doubtful receivables - (3,000)
FHE WA 5 Net rental income (2,246) (2,470)
IE S ks1E, (A K] ¥%8  Exchange losses/(gains), net 18 4)
TR R A Dividend income from listed investments (229) =
FLEMEA Interest income (2,611) (5,409)
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6. REFE @ 6. LOSS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
(continued)
* A A BE B A R0 i 8 O 49 AE AR A * The amortisation of know-how for the year is included in
B RZHEBRAINR - “Cost of sales” on the face of the consolidated profit and

loss account.

R KR R B K B 9T B BH S S **  The amortisation of goodwill and research and development
EEIETE G G R 2 [ HAh 587 32 expenditure for the year are included in “Other operating
IR e expenses” on the face of the consolidated profit and loss
account.
7. BABERAE 7. FINANCE COSTS

A%

Group
2002 2001

TET THIT
HK$°000 HK$°000

JHR AL N BUE#E 2 $R1T  Interest on bank loans and other borrowings

B S A S R 2 FILS wholly repayable within five years 6,349 5,816
A Hire purchase charges 36 53
6,385 5,869
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited and Section 161 of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance is as follows:

AEE
Group
2002 2001
FET AR
HK$’000 HK$°000
4 Fees:
WiTHES Executive directors - -
B EHATE S Independent non-executive directors - -
oAt 4 Other emoluments:
PATES Executive directors
B R R EYA Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 1,129 -
B R T BH 2 AL AL Performance related bonuses - —
BARE B Pension scheme contributions - —
1,129 -
1,129 -
HERMESRREMT The number of directors whose remuneration fell within

the following band is as follows:

ESAH

Number of directors
2002 2001

Z % 1,000,000 #7C  Nil to HK$1,000,000

4 7R Sz 406 A ] 2 2 BT 8 [R] 3 BT
AF AT B 4z 2 22 B

There was no arrangement under which a director waived

or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year.
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9. ABERBHFAL

AR BE T4 f R M S B AR AT A
EHECELTFE) > MEHZH
P 1 SR SR AR - LA (Z
—4 R REREZREFALZ

FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

The five highest paid individuals during the year included
nil (2001: Nil) director, details of whose remuneration are
set out in note 8 above. The details of the remuneration of

the five (2001: five) non-director, highest paid individuals

M & RS AR are as follows:

AEH

Group
2002 2001
FERT T
HKS$°000 HK$’000
¥4 BREREYHRZE  Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 2,168 1,593
HLR B B 2 AEAL Performance related bonuses - =
HRARE T E fh3K Pension scheme contributions 45 =

2,213 1,593

FHEE mmE N LA > e
R

The number of the non-director, highest paid individuals
whose remuneration fell within the following band is as

follows:

BEAH
Number of employees
2002 2001

Z % 1,000,000 #7C  Nil to HK$1,000,000

A AT JiE A B2 [ o) JA A AR B IRES 2 JE
H > I Hi IR B 9517 8,600,000 %
BE > HFEEEA E R g EH19E
23E N TS 8] 2 sk B Rt o it
A AF B N BEA T 2 1 R (E I AR T A
45 R AR R Eak e o

During the year, 8,600,000 share options were granted to
the non-director, highest paid employees in respect of their
services to the Group, further details of which are included
in the disclosures set out under the heading “Share option
scheme” in the Report of the Directors on pages 19 to 23.
No value in respect of the share options granted during the
year has been charged to the profit and loss account or

included in the above remuneration.
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10. # 18

R A A 5 A A 4F A 7 s I A it
JRERRAE 6 1 - T S0 A T v AL A
A (T4 ) o HAtuih @
2 T R i ) T 44 A 4 [ AR 7 I 7
Z BB RG220 - &
R LA IR

10.

TAX

No Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for because
the Group had no estimated assessable profits arising in
Hong Kong during the year (2001: Nil). Taxes on profits
assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the rates of
tax prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates,
based on existing legislation, interpretations and practices

in respect thereof.

K
Group
2002 2001
FTERT THETT
HK$°000 HK$°000
AR — HAthb[E  Provision for the year — elsewhere 1 -
VT4 2 A 43 A Overprovision in prior years (434) (1,640)
ALEFERIEFTA Tax credit for the year (433) (1,640)

11.

12.

A TR MU 908 A ) A 58 2 AR S I
(ZFF—4F ) -

BRREGBEXRBEREFHR

CRIARA R MBS HRERE —FEF
FEZH =+ —HIEFE 2 B AR, H
W EAS R I REAY £528,712,0009 05 (Z
EE—4F : £133,631,000% 0) °

BREE

A s A fls 18 T MR R AT A I TR A H
W TS R 1 AH £019,559,000% 7T (—
FE—4E : #115,296,000% 75) M 4E K
B fr T 8

1,374,136,424 % (= FF — F
1,119,928,205/%) 7 & -

R A A PR TELSIA T B AR 20 ) 2 At
AR SR A R R R
IIME_FEF R _FF =N
=t —HIEFEZ SR ER -

11.

12.

There was no significant unprovided deferred tax in respect
of the year (2001: Nil).

NET LOSS FROM ORDINARY
ACTIVITIES ATTRIBUTABLE TO
SHAREHOLDERS

The net loss from ordinary activities attributable to
shareholders for the year ended 31 March 2002 dealt with
in the financial statements of the Company, is approximately
HK$28,712,000 (2001: approximately HK$133,631,000).

LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on the net
loss from ordinary activities attributable to shareholders for
the year of approximately HK$19,559,000 (2001:
approximately HK$15,296,000), and the weighted average
number of 1,374,136,424 (2001: 1,119,928,205) ordinary

shares in issue during the year.

Diluted loss per share amounts for the years ended 31 March
2002 and 2001 have not been presented because the effects
of the assumed conversion of the share options and
convertible notes of the Company during these years were

anti-dilutive.

F s/ ELEBA WA A -2001/2002 F
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—EE X =ZH=+—H
31 March 2002

nts

13. BIE&EE 13. FIXED ASSETS
AEE Group &R
HEMERE KERRE
BREWE T REF Leasehold Furniture, RE KEEIR
Investment Land and improve-  fixtures and Motor Construction Et ol
properties buildings ments equipment vehicles in progress Total
T T TH#T T Tt T Tt
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000

JRAE AN Cost or valuation:

TRAEY] At beginning of year 44,350 - 9,666 10,445 1,827 68,006 134,294
WWE Additions = = 2,410 2,949 250 5,708 11,317
WS e B T 2 7 Acquisition of a subsidiary B B 1,393 1,210 581 - 3,184
i Disposals/Write-off - (14) (170) (775) - - (959)
A E Deficit on revaluation (200) - - - - - (200)
[o873 Transfers - 49,109 - 18,408 422 (67,939) —
e = S At 31 March 2002

=H=+—H 44,150 49,095 13,299 32,237 3,080 5,775 147,636

FRAMESAGE ST Analysis of cost or valuation:

i A At cost - 49,095 13,299 32,237 3,080 5,775 103,486
WOFFETHEZH At 31 March 2002
= Rl P valuation 44,150 - - - = = 44,150
44,150 49,095 13,299 32,237 3,080 5,775 147,636
ESiEiy Accumulated depreciation:
TRAEY] At beginning of year - - 5,071 6,212 974 - 12,257
AAE Provided during the year = 317 3,023 1,782 327 - 5,449
WS B T 2 Acquisition of a subsidiary — — 854 441 125 - 1,420
s Disposals/Write-off - - (170) (629) - - (799)
e = St At 31 March 2002
=A=+—H = 317 8,778 7,806 1,426 = 18,327
HRTH A Net book value:
A At 31 March 2002
44,150 48,778 4,521 24,431 1,654 5,775 129,309
At 31 March 2001
44,350 - 4,595 4,233 853 68,006 122,037
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Notes to Financial Statements

EEFE HFZH=+—H
31 March 2002

13. Bl E&EE @) 13. FIXED ASSETS (continued)
b N Company
HEWHEE
Leasehold
improvements
T
HK$’000
A Cost:
R EER] At beginning of year -
NE Additions 812
WoERTHE=A=1—H At 31 March 2002 812
BETE Accumulated depreciation:
R EER] At beginning of year =
A A JE A Provided during the year 270
WoERTHE=A=1—H At 31 March 2002 270
HR T Net book value:
WoERTHE=A=1—H At 31 March 2002 542
R_FF—E=H=+—H At 31 March 2001 -
(a) ALEEZREWEL I (a) The Group’s investment properties are held under the
Ao following lease terms:
5E G B
Hong Kong PRC Total

THIT T o THIT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000

REIFHAY Long term leases 17,400 — 17,400
s HATE 4 Medium term leases 25,550 1,200 26,750
42,950 1,200 44,150

F s/ ELEBA WA A -2001/2002 F
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SEEEZN
31 March 2002

=t—H

13. B EEE @

(b)

©

AL BBV R T F AF
ZA=t Bl G EREEE
il L P 5 4 B T AT FR B AR
FAELLAPITIEES « & THE
YIS ERA M TR =%
A TR 15 O B S AR B 33

REFFEZA=Z+—H AR
LA TREWEZ B EA
3£40,150,000% 7C (= FF —4F ¢
40,150,000 o) 3 FAE 2 4% T4
AL [ — M AR AT RLE 2 HEH (K
27 (b)) o

AR 2 B SR RO 599
100K -

WoEEAFE=ZA=T—HMUM
WA 5907 SR 2 A = et I
VR 2 % 18] V3 (B 43 73l 49 58,0005
TC (CFE—4E - ) K 4)556,000
Wt (ZRE—4F © £554,000%

JG)

BELHER > FETEPIEE
ALHBE (ZEBEE—IF 1 4
13,116,000% JC) °

13. FIXED ASSETS (continued)

(b)

©

Hong Kong Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2001/2002

The Group’s investment properties were revalued on
31 March 2002 by Knight Frank, independent
professionally qualified valuers, on an open market
value, existing use basis. Certain investment properties
are leased to third parties under operating leases,
further details of which are included in note 33 to the

financial statements.

At 31 March 2002, certain of the Group’s investment
properties with a total carrying value of
HK$40,150,000 (2001: HK$40,150,000) were
pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the
Group (note 27(b)).

Further particulars of the Group’s investment

properties are included on pages 99 to 100.

The net book value of office equipment and motor
vehicles held under hire purchase contracts as at 31
March 2002 amounted to approximately HK$58,000
(2001: Nil) and approximately HK$556,000 (2001:
approximately HK$554,000) respectively.

The carrying amount of construction in progress
included nil capitalised interest as at the balance sheet
date (2001: approximately HK$13,116,000).
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Notes to Financial Statements
TEECHE=H=+—H
31 March 2002

14 B EE 14. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
&EH Group
JEFE B B AR
Deferred
H T A#E  development Pk ]
Know-how costs Total

Tt T T T T
HK$°000 ~ HK$'000  HKS$’000

A Cost:
AR At beginning of year 19,335 6,510 25,845
NE Additions 6,580 1,426 8,006
N_ERAE=H=1+—H At 31 March 2002 25,915 7,936 33,851
ZEHike Accumulated amortisation:
AR At beginning of year 5,016 - 5,016
A AR BEHE S Amortisation provided during the year 786 - 786
WoFE_HE=H=1—H At 31 March 2002 5,802 = 5,802
B T VP Net book value:
N_ERE=H=1+—H At 31 March 2002 20,113 7,936 28,049
W o_ER—F=H=1—H At 31 March 2001 14,319 6,510 20,829

F s/ ELEBA WA A -2001/2002 F
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TEECHEE
31 March 2002

15.

H=+—H

HEREHE

A LB PR AN & BB YE RIS 309
R SR B 5 R SR M R 2 o TR o A
BARMEL L HERAMHECEAR
b7y B SRR IR A & A AL BRI
T

15.

GOODWILL AND NEGATIVE
GOODWILL

SSAP 30 was adopted during the year, as detailed in note 2
to the financial statements. The amounts of the goodwill
and negative goodwill capitalised as an asset or recognised
in the consolidated balance sheet, arising from the

acquisition of subsidiaries, are as follows:

REE Group
Gk
Goodwill
THIT
HKS$’000
A Cost:
TR AER] At beginning of year 5,939
S e e g A Acquisition of a subsidiary 15,643
W_FEEAE=A=1+—H At 31 March 2002 21,582
BEHEEE Accumulated amortisation:
TR AER] At beginning of year -
A A 4 6 Amortisation provided during the year 396
N_FE_H=A=+—H At 31 March 2002 396
HRTHFHE - Net book value:
W_FEEHE=HA=1+—H At 31 March 2002 21,186
N _ER—AFE=H=+—H At 31 March 2001 5,939

Hong Kong Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2001/2002
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R e Y A
31 March 2002

15. BEREEE @ 15. GOODWILL AND NEGATIVE

M B MR LS AEEC R G
AR5 E L 45 3058 2 At PR A - A
FEI & E 4R A — H B G < I
A JEE 7 AT S T 2 AR 2 TR R R
i | e AR S 5 b A4 B A
fitt 4t 1A <

B E R AN G BB RSB 315% - A
42 1) ) BR A0 — TE BIOR DAREAG 1A 55 4 b
HEEE 2 B 2 WA D - B A
42 [H] A4 T B HERR 210 AT A 1ot A i
B 2 P (B A0 773,0004 0T > #E1E R
NER o AR g FHE T UE HI 5 3058 2 R
TEVEMRSC > I RHBOR 2 s B AR
LA T4 J35 38 90 R o WP T LA T 4
BEYR _RE—F=ZA=T—H#H
2 B R R N 47773,000% G © Itk
TE DA i A BE R R S A AR B 2 SE 40 A
W o

GOODWILL (continued)

As detailed in note 3 to the financial statements, the Group
has adopted the transitional provision of SSAP 30 which
permits goodwill and negative goodwill in respect of
acquisitions which occurred prior to the financial year
commencing on 1 April 2001, to remain eliminated against
consolidated reserves or credited to capital reserve,

respectively.

Due to the adoption of SSAP 31, the Group has adopted a
policy to assess goodwill eliminated against consolidated
reserves for impairment. As a result, the Group has
recognised an impairment of the goodwill previously
eliminated against capital reserve, of approximately
HK$773,000, during the year, as detailed in the table below.
This change of accounting policy has been accounted for
retrospectively as a prior year adjustment in accordance with
the transitional provisions of SSAP 30. This prior year
adjustment has resulted in an increase of approximately
HKS$773,000 in the amount of accumulated losses
previously reported as at 31 March 2001. This prior year
adjustment has had no effect on the results for the current

year.

F s/ ELEBA WA A -2001/2002 F
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Notes to Financial Statements
CE®ECHE=ZH=+—H
31 March 2002

15. BEREEE @ 15. GOODWILL AND NEGATIVE
GOODWILL (continued)

B4 — H B s 2 A The amounts of the goodwill and negative goodwill
T VA B 2 T J > D T AR A B e A remaining in consolidated reserves, arising from the
NZ R AHEZEHEMT acquisition of subsidiaries prior to the financial year

commencing on 1 April 2001, are as follows:

AEE
Group
REXR REXR
fREEH RETTAZ
[k aHE
Goodwill Negative
eliminated against goodwill credited to
capital reserve capital reserve
FET TH#EIC
HK$°000 HK$’000
A Cost:
AR By — R AF At beginning of year and
=H=+—H 31 March 2002 773 (13,051)
BEHEME Accumulated impairment:
AR At beginning of year:
JUGIE & As previously reported - -
VA4 B R Prior year adjustment 773 -
B E5 As restated 773 =
AR A BE TR A A8 Impairment provided during the year - -
REEZRTHEZH=+—H  At31 March 2002 773 -
1 Net amount:
REEZRTAEZH=1+—H  At31 March 2002 - (13,051)
W_EE—HF=A=1+—H At 31 March 2001 773 (13,051)

Hong Kong Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2001/2002
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16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

B 7% ¥R M &

Notes to Financial Statements
SERECEZA=S N

31 March 2002

RAF]
Company

2002 2001

FET T

HK$’000 HK$’000

FE LT R BAE Unlisted shares, at cost 39,445 29,344
JRE VS o A ) R IE Due from subsidiaries 360,628 334,905
400,073 364,249
MERIERE o] Provisions for impairments (26,593) (26,593)
FES R /S FIZKIEHEMS  Provisions for amounts due from subsidiaries (360,628) (334,905)
12,852 2,751

JRE WS B Jo 2 Rk L T SRS A - S K

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-

free and have no fixed terms of repayment.

FEWE AR BT Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:
BRITEE AR F RIS
Bz EE REBFSL
B R EE311T N Percentage
& Nominal value of equity
Place of of issued attributable to
incorporation/ ordinary/ the Company FTEXEK
NGRS registration registered  EHiZ i3 Principal
Company Name and operations share capital Direct Indirect activities
o B 5 R LR BR A il 25T - 100%  HEER
China Genetic Limited Hong Kong HK$2 Investment
holding
HEGRAT R ) i 3T - 100%  WrERE
China Silver Limited Hong Kong HK$3 Property
holding
Forever Good Investments Limited HEJE I LS 13%70 - 100% e -gzdila
British Virgin UsS$1 Investment
Islands holding

F s/ ELEBA WA A -2001/2002 F
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CEEHEZHA=+—H
31 March 2002

16. RB AR 2 EHE @)

16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

B B{THE RRAF LS

Bz EE REBDL

R AR AR Percentage

R 2 Nominal value of equity

Place of of issued attributable to
incorporation/ ordinary/ the Company TEEK
AR ER registration registered  EZ SiFE= Principal
Company Name and operations share capital Direct Indirect activities
HaEAFEA R il 2 #ETT - 100%  YIHEBE
Forever Wealth Enterprises Limited Hong Kong HK$2 Property
holding
Gain Success Investments Limited EJF IR LR 1 %70 - 100% HHEEE
V& US$1 Securities
British Virgin dealing

Islands
/Hong Kong

M — B SHAT A R A (B EED F1E 10,000,000 A B ¥ - 51%  #mEE
Guizhou Ensure Chain Pharmacy PRC RMB10,000,000 Retail of
Co., Ltd. (note 1) pharmaceutical
products
AL LREA FRA T 3T - 100%  BEERK
Hong Kong Genetic Limited Hong Kong HKS$3 Investment
holding
PSR AT RN ) i 2% - 100% @ WERE
Hung Wah Development Limited Hong Kong HK$2 Property
holding
Joinbest Investment Limited U IR A 50,000 370 - 100% BB
(BfF5E i) British Virgin US$50,000 Investment
(note ii) Islands holding
LAY (R HD) AR R T 113,942,339 # 7T - 100%  BEEK
Nam Pei Hong (Holding) Limited Hong Kong HKS$113,942,339 Investment
holding
AT BB A R A A i 10,000 # G - 100%  WERE
Nam Pei Hong Investments Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 Property
holding
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16. R B AR ZEE @

Notes to Financial Statements

SEECEEH =1+ —H

31 March 2002

16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

ERTEE RRQ RS

Bz EE REBEDL

R EE R AR 2R Percentage

REEmR Nominal value of equity

Place of of issued attributable to
incorporation/ ordinary/ the Company TEEK
NGRS registration registered HiZ i3 Principal
Company Name and operations share capital Direct Indirect activities
AT EEA BR A A i 300,000 #JC - 100%  fR{tEHE
Nam Pei Hong Management Limited Hong Kong HK$300,000 MR
Provision of
management
services
Nam Pei Hong Nominees Limited Fis PR STH = 100%  FRALCIEA
Hong Kong HK$2 ilc&7:3
Provision
of nominee
services
MAAT B ERAMARA T 1,200,000 # 75 - 100% FE R
Nam Pei Hong Sum Yung Hong Kong HK$1,200,000 Wiy~ Rk
Drugs Company Limited R AgERREE
Wholesale
and retail of
Chinese
medicines,
dried seafood
and health
products
N P H International (B.V.L) Limited /& L #E 5 4T 100% = TE
British Virgin US$4 Investment
Islands holding
AT A A R R i 27T - 100%  fRfthiE
N P H Sino-Meditech Limited Hong Kong HK$2 IR
Provision of
Chinese
clinical
services

F s/ ELEBA WA A -2001/2002 F
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CE®ECHE=ZH=+—H
31 March 2002

16. R B AR Z2EZE @

16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

BRTEE RRA R LS

Bz EE REEDL

B3 EE R AR 2R Percentage

REEMR Nominal value of equity

Place of of issued attributable to
incorporation/ ordinary/ the Company TEEK
AE BB registration registered BE i3 Principal
Company Name and operations share capital Direct Indirect activities
R A Y AT R R G 9,620,000 3G - 57% AERSEE
Shanghai Hua Xin High PRC US$9,620,000 YR
Biotechnology Inc. il &
Production
and sale of
bio-
technological
products
PR BB A BRZ ) it 250 - 100%  BETER
Skyspace Investments Limited Hong Kong HKS$2 Investment
holding
T i A R ) i 27T - 100%  YIEBE
Well Gain Assets Limited Hong Kong HKS$2 Property
holding
PN R s 4 BE R R A PR W) B 25,600,000 ARHE 34.43% - PR RAE
(T ML ) (3l THRE R 45 9)
Yangzhou Genetic Engineering PRC RMB25,600,000 B HAt
Ltd. (“YZ Genetic”) (note iii) AW
Research and
development
of transgenic
drugs and other
biological
products
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16. RIIB AR 2w @) 16.
Wik -
() AAF B 7 2 g 28 7 o
(i) A% 4F B 7 BT 2 W 48 7 -

(i) A< 4F BT AL 2 BB S FD o 1 R
B R 2 2 ] AR R bl R AT 4
16.39%2 "> BUB R 45 )1 i REVR 248
OGN (T MAETR ) #5277 2 B4
o P AR VR O A48 R 45 M ) #
HGZREMRT AL > AL
AR M R R G 2 74 R KR
IEARE L o WO AR 2\ ) R il 45 1] 2
R 2 BB R UK -

ERINHA R A Z B AR > EHREGE
T E VALIDEER 3: 2 F/ S H )i 8
B2 RERERAEEAEEFEHLE
TRy o FEHEGR S > A LA S
2wl Z R R TU AR

R e Y A
31 March 2002

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Notes:

(i)  The subsidiary was newly acquired during the year.

(i1)) The subsidiary was newly incorporated during the year.

(iii) The subsidiary was newly incorporated during the year. In
accordance with YZ Genetic’s articles of association and an
authorisation letter signed by Yang Zhou Energy &
Transportation Investment Co., Ltd. (“YZ Energy”), a 16.39%
minority shareholder of YZ Genetic, YZ Energy has delegated
its voting rights in the board of directors of YZ Genetic to the
Company, hence enabling the Company to have 4 out of the 7
representatives on YZ Genetic’s board of directors. Therefore
the Company can exercise control over the financial and

operating policies of YZ Genetic.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results
for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of
the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the

opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

17. REEE QAT 2= 17. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
AEH
Group
2002 2001
FET THIT
HKS$°000 HK$°000
FiAk & 7 E Share of net assets 818 818
JRE AT I 5 ) 3K Due from associates 4,332 4,775
5,150 5,593
IR Provisions for impairments (235) (235)
JES TR\ R ZRE 2 M5 Provisions for amounts due from associates (2,604) (1,570)
2,311 3,788

JRE WS W 5 2 BRI SRS - R

The amounts due from associates are unsecured, interest-

free and have no fixed terms of repayment.

F s/ ELEBA WA A -2001/2002 F
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CEEHEZHA=+—H
31 March 2002

17. RBEERTAIZ2EE @

17. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

KRR

BRI & ZREBSL

R&H#E  Percentage of

Place of ownership
Ed Y incorporation/ interest TEEK
AR ER Business registration attributable Principal
Company Name structure and operations to the Group activities
e I A ) v BT BR ) 3 HH 33% A R s
Fujian Province Xinmin High Corporate PRC HE R #59) Be
Biotechnology Co. Ltd. i
Production and
sale of genetic
medicines and
medical
equipment
9l A il T S T [ E(e S i 31% Rt TE R
PR BR AT Corporate PRC KBRS R RES

Shanghai Biotechnology
Industrial Zone United
Development Co. Ltd.

B A B ] 2 SR > TR H

SCRE M 4 R B o

18. REIRE

Provision of
building
management and
environmental

support services

The names of the PRC associates in English are direct

translations of their registered names in Chinese.

18. LONG TERM INVESTMENTS

rEH
Group
2002 2001
TR TWE
HKS$°000 HK$°000
F TR S %A Unlisted equity investments, at cost 21,415 21,415
O RIERE L] Provisions for impairments (17,240) (17,240)
4,175 4,175
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CERECUEZ =0
31 March 2002

19. & 19. INVENTORIES

KEE

Group
2002 2001
FERT THIT
HK$’000 HK$°000
S AL Raw materials 176 118
TE il it Work in progress 1,369 1,880
il J8 i Finished goods 296 508
[l Merchandised goods 16,389 6,905
18,230 9,411

20. B E 5 Bk

AL ELG T KA R Y o R
i SO R 2 R P 2 A5 S 30K
FEOOK o H TR A YRt L B4
il 2 & F 258 A60K £ 180K -

T &5 H B R ) Rk 2 R 1 (DL B
SEH 5 B E) KSR 2 AT

20. TRADE RECEIVABLES

The Group’s credit terms granted to customers of Chinese
and other medicines, health products and dried seafood
products range between 30 to 90 days. Its credit terms
granted to customers of biotechnological and
pharmaceutical products in the PRC range between 60 to
180 days.

An aged analysis of the trade receivables as at the balance

sheet date, based on invoice date, and net of provisions, is

mr : as follows:

AEE

Group
2002 2001
FET T T
HK$’000 HK$’000
3MEAN Within 3 months 7,733 1,641
4% 6l H 4 to 6 months 504 1,881
721218 H 7 to 12 months 341 408
13 %2418 H 13 to 24 months 1,117 =
2418 H Over 24 months 6 =
9,701 3,930

F s/ ELEBA WA A -2001/2002 F
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CEEHEZHA=+—H
31 March 2002

21. B REER D ERIE 21. DUE FROM INTERMEDIATE
HOLDING COMPANIES
A%EM AAT
Group Company
2002 2001 2002 2001
R FET T FET THEIT
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
JEUL Tin Ming#H  Due from Tin Ming () 6,120 = 6,120 =
fElHong TauzkJE  Due from Hong Tau (b) 2,118 2,118 2,118 2,118
8,238 2,118 8,238 2,118
Mt - Notes:
(a) MEUX Tin Ming Management Limited (@) The amount of HK$6,120,000 due from Tin Ming
([Tin Ming]) 2 6,120,000 7t 3 3% Management Limited (“Tin Ming”) is unsecured, and bears
P A S B I B A RN 1E o %K interest at prime rate plus 1% per annum. The amount was
R ZELZ A=A Z+/\HEH due on 28 March 2002 but the Company has agreed to extend
EAANFEREERERYE -F the repayment date to 31 March 2003. On 22 July 2002, Tin
E=FE=H=+—H R _FE— Ming settled HK$612,000 with the remaining balance to be
£ H =+ H > Tin Ming & & settled on or before 31 March 2003 by 2 instalments.

612,000‘2%77: s TR =
W E A H S A 2

(b) U Hong Tau Investment Ltd. ([ Hong (b) The amount of approximately HK$2,118,000 due from Hong
Taul) 2 ZK A 492,118,000 JC J Hong Tau Investment Ltd. (“Hong Tau”) represents the sharing of
Taus #5 2 BB EAH B 2 - 3% e the financial restructuring costs by Hong Tau. The amount
FEARI e B o FRIAWM BT 4 is unsecured and interest-free. The amount was due on 28
=AZ+HANHB - AALE SR March 2002 but the Company has agreed to extend the
BHREANE _TE S S = repayment date to 31 March 2003. On 22 July 2002, Hong
+—H R _FF HEELA -+ Tau settled approximately HK$212,000 with the remaining
H > Hong Taull i # 212,000 JC > balance to be settled on or before 31 March 2003 by
MERFMN —EF=F=H=1— 2 instalments.

H s 2 |l 43 230 -
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22. WHAKRE

Notes to Financial Statements
TEECHE=H=+—H
31 March 2002

22. SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS

AEM
Group
2002 2001
TERT THIT
HK$’000 HK$°000

bR > T

Listed equity investments, at market value:

s Hong Kong 9,220 10,924
LTEAREE > #Ti{E :©  Listed debt investment, at market value:
s Hong Kong 970 =
10,190 10,924
A A TS R 3R H A SR T 2 e 4R The market value of the Group’s short term investments at
¥ 2 T {A 47 8,506,000 TG (T T — the date of approval of these financial statements was
4t %79,804,000%5 7C) © approximately HK$8,506,000 (2001: approximately
HK$9,804,000).
23. BERAEHEEY 23. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
REH 2 NG|
Group Company
2002 2001 2002 2001
FET T FERT TH#IT
HKS$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000
B4 R SRATAF K Cash and bank balances 7,858 6,174 2,126 802
TE WK Time deposits 49,154 81,209 47,199 81,209
Bl KB AHSEY) Cash and cash equivalents 57,012 87,383 49,325 82,011

F s/ ELEBA WA A -2001/2002 F
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CE®ECHE=ZH=+—H
31 March 2002

4. ERESRARARKERE

S5 H AT B o) AR R SR (LLEE
EH W) ZIRES AT

24. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

An aged analysis of the trade and bills payables as at the
balance sheet date, based on invoice date, is as follows:

rEH

Group
2002 2001
FET THE T
HKS$’000 HK$°000
3ME A Within 3 months 4,860 4,832
4% 6l H 4 to 6 months 4,120 392
7TE 1218 H 7 to 12 months 436 142
13% 248 H 13 to 24 months 177 359
2418 A Over 24 months 6,812 6,490
16,405 12,215

25. AN FIAR B RIR

25. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

EME PN
Group Company
2002 2001 2002 2001
FET TH#sTC THERT T
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
JEFEEIE K Accruals and other
HoAl & 7 liabilities 50,399 48912 5,709 5,734
JEEAT D8 Due to a minority
JRE R IH shareholder - 163 - -
50,399 49,075 5,709 5,734
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B 7% ¥R M &

Notes to Financial Statements
CERECUEZ =0
31 March 2002

26. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

rEH ART
Group Company
2002 2001 2002 2001
R T FHET T FHT TH#IT
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
SRAT B A A 3K Current portion of
2 BVHAER y bank and other
borrowings 27 62,092 54,099 6,084 13,000
JREATHR I 5 49 Current portion of
2 BB £y hire purchase
contract payables 28 135 127 - -
62,227 54,226 6,084 13,000
27. BITREMER 27. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS
rEER ¥ N
Group Company
2002 2001 2002 2001
FET T FERT THIT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
ERALE, S0 Trust receipts loans,
A A — 5T (a) secured — note (a) 2,065 2,332 - =
SRATEK Bank loans:
A AT — B (b) Secured — note (b) 43,085 45,485 - —
SR — Bt (o) Unsecured — note (c) 31,960 28,200 - =
77,110 76,017 - -
EE Y5 Convertible notes:
SRAT TR IR Bank convertible note,
A HEHR — Bt EE(d) secured — note (d) 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000
FEE AT 1B B4 Creditor convertible
A I note, secured - 13,000 - 13,000
CIE Y&t Convertible notes,
MEAEHT — Bt i) unsecured — note (e) 12,254 = 12,254 =
HAB B K > MEHEH Other loans, unsecured
— 5D — note (f) 18,884 8,167 - -
148,248 137,184 52,254 53,000

F s/ ELEBA WA A -2001/2002 F
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EXEF_HE=ZH=+—H

31 March 2002

27. SRITREMER @ 27. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS
(continued)
rEE AAT
Group Company
2002 2001 2002 2001

TR T FEx Tt
HKS$’000 HK$°000  HKS$’000 HK$°000

JHAER 2 SR1T Bank and trust receipts
& Rl K loans repayable:
ZEA —4F N s N Within one year or
RV IRE i 78 on demand 37,124 32,932 - =
TR AR In the second year 3,998 3,098 - -
R = B HAR In the third to fifth
(H BEMFERIEEN) years, inclusive 35,988 23,992 - =
FAERL Beyond five years - 15,995 - =
77,110 76,017 - =
JEAE R 2 ] R Convertible notes
FHE repayable:
ZE A — 4R N B A Within one year or
R IRy 22 on demand 6,084 13,000 6,084 13,000
A AT In the second year 14,170 2,000 14,170 2,000
NE=FHERAE In the third to fifth
(& B WA TEN) years, inclusive 32,000 38,000 32,000 38,000
52,254 53,000 52,254 53,000
JE B 2 A AR Other loans repayable:
ZE A — 4 N B AR A Within one year or
R IFy 22 on demand 18,884 8,167 - =
SRAT 8 2% S oA A 3K Total bank and other
st borrowings 148,248 137,184 52,254 53,000
B VERL B B & Portion classified as
Z R0y current liabilities
(B 5E26) (note 26) (62,092) (54,099) (6,084) (13,000)
= HER 1 Long term portion 86,156 83,085 46,170 40,000

Hong Kong Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2001/2002
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27. SRITREMER @

R e Y A
31 March 2002

27. BANKAND OTHER BORROWINGS

(continued)

M aF - Notes:

(@) AEEZAFFEIIRE T LUR &5 (a) The Group’s trust receipts loans were secured by one
A BUFE(E2,800,0009 00 (% of the Group’s investment properties with a carrying
F—4E 1 3,000,0008570) 2 A 5 value of HK$2,800,000 (2001: HK$3,000,000) at the
BB - MR AIFERT 2 A balance sheet date and a corporate guarantee executed
WELRAE By FEHR - by the Company.

(b) WATEHZ EEGME T (b) The principal terms of the bank loans are summarised

below:
(EE N B R AT A R A
(BLAG B SR 1T (B W) AIRA A
Lender: Sin Hua Bank Limited
(now known as Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited)
A ATB 5 B—39,986,71 11 7T

Principal amount:

B

Interest:

Repayment:

Tranche A facility - HK$39,986,711
Bl 1315 ££—5,498,607# 7T
Tranche B facility - HK$5,498,607

AR5 BL A SR 55 A 7 s O R R 1S o FLE I SR -
The Tranche A facility bears an interest rate equal to the Hong Kong prime lending

rate minus 1.5 % per annum. The interest is payable each month.

BER 4 B2 A FHFLE,

The Tranche B facility bears no interest.

AR5 SR R AR 3618 A 1% 7 44FH 2 > RSB B A &2 10%
20% ~ 30% % 40% °

The Tranche A facility is repayable by 4 annual instalments commencing 36
months after drawdown in the respective amounts of 10%, 20%, 30% and 40% of

the principal amount.

BAR 35 6 )5 4y 231 i 42 - 2,400,0003 7T A $2 HUA% 1218 H & - 8RR K
% 1218 B -

The Tranche B facility is repayable by 2 instalments, HK$2,400,000 on the date
falling 12 months after drawdown and the residual balance repayable 12 months

thereafter.

F s/ ELEBA WA A -2001/2002 F
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27. RIT R EMER @ 27. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

(continued)

ST BERTY H A 7 2 2
AAEEARATR BT
WA Z+-EHER -

ARG 2 RATERTILA T 540

B &

(i) AEEHE H BAFE(E40,150,000
WL AL AT HREY)
%

(i) 4 HE T Mg A [ 2 MKk
iy~ S - W - G
I 2 [ %2 o 77 B 3K

(iii) EEALEEAMATBZET
BEMEZHE

(iv) ARSI T B 2 v 2 A i

&

(v) ARG R B T B 2 ) a5
W2 ARSI

(c) G MALIMIRIT R AL (c)
£55.796)E % 7.184)H o HpiZ T4
7 ) B B 2 W) — 4 £ %430,000,000
NRZ 847835 B — B A
A AL E AR o

Hong Kong Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2001/2002

The bank loans were drawn down by China Vantage
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
on 27 April 2000.

The Group’s bank loans were secured by:

(i) certain of the Group’s investment properties with
an aggregate carrying value of HK$40,150,000
at the balance sheet date;

(ii) fixed and floating charges over the shares,
undertakings, properties, assets and rights of

certain of the Group’s subsidiaries;

(iii) assignment of rentals over certain of the Group’s

investment properties situated in Hong Kong;

(iv) debentures over certain of the Group’s

subsidiaries; and

(v) corporate guarantees executed by the Company

and certain of its subsidiaries.

The Group’s unsecured bank loans bear interests at
rates ranging from 5.796% to 7.184% per annum,
among which, a bank loan amounting to
RMB30,000,000 granted to a subsidiary of the

Company was guaranteed by a related company.



B 75 ¥ R MY &

Notes to Financial Statements

CEECHE=ZA=+—H
31 March 2002

27. RITREMER =& 27. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS
(continued)
(d) SRATFIHRREE () 2 £% (d) The principal terms of the bank convertible note (the
PSR HE T “Note”) are summarised below:
BATA A2
Issuer: The Company
A A H#E AT A R A
(B8 b B8R 47 (%) A RR A #))
Noteholder: Sin Hua Bank Limited

(now known as Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited)

4 40,000,000% 7T

Principal amount: HK$40,000,000

PR FEBREA AR AL AT g R AR g ERCE .

Voting: The noteholder is not entitled to attend or vote at any meetings of the Company.

SLiRE 5 J0.108 7T > AT T

Conversion price: HK$0.10 per share, subject to adjustment

FE AERAE  ZHR SRR AT H IR E oM A X ERIMZ B AR H AR5 AR
ol H 2 W 2 BB EHW H 2 1k o 5 52 4R 55 AR S AT -

Interest: 4% per annum, payable semi-annually in arrears on dates falling 6 months and 1

year after the date of issue of the Note and on the respective dates falling every 6

months thereafter until the maturity date.

B REEAGHE > AN AR ZHR AT B RS m 8 F 12 5 off A K& 1423
A &Eé%ﬂéﬁ—,ﬁﬁﬁﬁé/ﬂ;ﬁﬁﬁ EEERSN B REEAEH
5%~ 5%~ 10% > 10% ~ 35%/%35% °

Repayment: The Company is required to repay the principal amount outstanding by 6 semi-annual
successive instalments on dates falling 6 months and 1 year after the second anniversary
of the date of issue of the Note and on the anniversary of such dates of each year thereafter

in the respective amounts of 5%, 5%, 10%, 10%, 35% and 35% of the principal amount

outstanding.

B A R E A SRR EEAT B EH A O A 1) IR R A AR LA B R R
ER 2 A SR R 2 AR -

Maturity: The Company is required to repay the principal monies outstanding under the relevant

Note to the noteholder together with accrued interest on the fifth anniversary of the
date of issue of the Note.

w2 OH A A -2001/2002 4F
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27. RITREMER &= 27. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS
(continued)
SRR T A AT S BB A B IR DA A S 0 B A 4 A S AR A

2O A o E DL SR E AT R LB AR KSR > e 2R
P8 A A 8547 400,000,000/8 A8 2 7 38 3 8 B o

Right of conversion:  The noteholder has the right to convert the whole or part of the principal amount of
the Note into new ordinary shares of the Company at any time prior to maturity.
Upon the full conversion of the Note at the conversion price, based on the existing
capital structure, 400,000,000 new ordinary shares of the Company will be issued
to the noteholder.

%H{i%ﬁ/\ ERBAENA A HEE The Note was issued to Sin Hua Bank Limited (now
T2 AR IR & Bl 317 5 known as Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited) on
TEREREE > BHEOR_FERE 27 April 2000 following an ordinary resolution
£ H Z 4B H BT TR EERIT AR approving the issue of the Note passed by the
2y A (BB SRAT (FH) ARARD) o shareholders at the Company’s special general meeting
held on 25 April 2000.

SFHR LT B & TEAE S KA The Note was secured by:
() JR#E A BAF(E({E40,150,000% 70 (i) certain of the Group’s investment properties with
ZALEEMZETREYE an aggregate carrying value of HK$40,150,000

at the balance sheet date;

() AEFELTHEARZ KRG 3% (i) fixed and floating charges over the shares,
B~ W G IR 2 EE & undertakings, properties, assets and rights of
FENEHR 5 K& certain of the Group’s subsidiaries; and

(i) EEARLEMRES LG THRE (ili) assignment of rentals over certain of the Group’s
WEZ A - investment properties situated in Hong Kong.

Hong Kong Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2001/2002
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CEECHE=ZA=+—H
31 March 2002

27. |ITREMER @ 27. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS
(continued)

(e) WAEIN > AT LIMAE 15,254,400 (e) During the year, the Company acquired a subsidiary
b e Ll /N in the PRC for a consideration of HK$15,254,400, of
HH112,254,400% 70 B AN R BEAT which HK$12,254,400 was satisfied by the issue of
CIE &5 SNk Y &5 convertible notes of the Company. The principal terms
ARG R of the convertible notes are summarised below:
BTN AN
Issuer: The Company
A4 12,254,400 7T
Principal amount: HK$12,254,400
P - FERA AT AN AR g RSN B R o
Voting: The noteholders are not entitled to attend or vote at any meetings of the Company.
SR fE BB 1.38W T > AT T AR
Conversion price: HK$1.38 per share, subject to adjustment
FE - DE 3 SRV S R
Interest: No interest is payable on the convertible notes.

S K B ] SRR ORI AT B SRR R AT H R A — A AF BH AR L4 A AT IRR[H]

Conversion and

redemption:

(DATBE AR R TR R A =0 2 — BA R R 2B @ 5 2 (2)
ZORA N A E TR R A =02 — .

At any time within the period of 1 year commencing on the day falling on the
first anniversary of the date of issue of the convertible notes, the noteholders may:
(1) exercise the conversion right to convert an amount representing one-third of the
principal amount of the convertible notes into new ordinary shares of the Company;
or (2) require the Company to redeem one-third of the principal amount of the

convertible notes.

SRR N TR AT B SR B AT H L R 58 T A B AR AR A AT R ]
(AT SRR S TR R SEARA G =00 2 “ AR R Z S @R 5 5 (2)
ZORA N A E TR B R A =02 = .

At any time within the period of 1 year commencing on the day falling on the
second anniversary of the date of issue of the convertible notes, the noteholders
may: (1) exercise the conversion right to convert an amount representing two-
thirds of the principal amount of the convertible notes into new ordinary shares of
the Company; or (2) require the Company to redeem two-thirds of the principal

amount of the convertible notes.

F s/ ELEBA WA A -2001/2002 F
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27. |MITREMER @ 27. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS
(continued)
() AEEE 2 H AL B KT (f) The Group’s other loans are unsecured and are
T TAF 1A 4 A8 0 BV IRE (B8 » repayable within 1 year or on demand. Included in
Al B 2K TS L4 B AT BB A R 2 other loans is an amount of HK$2,256,000 (2001:
3K IH2,256,00085 70 (ZFF— HK$2,256,000) due to a director of a subsidiary, of
4+ 2,256,000 78) Hi 111,927,000 which HK$1,927,000 (2001: HK$799,000) is interest-
Wt (ZEE—4F : 799,000%5 1) free, with the remaining balances bearing interest at
TIARGERIE > REHZ AERI SR 57 7% per annum (2001: rates ranging from 3.06% to
(SRR 4 R H3.06H £ 7.03% per annum).
7.03H) o
28 HEBEWN 2B FE 28. HIRE PURCHASE CONTRACT
PAYABLES
A B2 [ h 2 65 SE 5 I R SEBE AR The Group enters into hire purchase contracts of certain of
2 VR RN A T A R T AL its motor vehicles and office equipment for its retail business
# o WG K YIE BB E KA 1 and daily business operations. These contracts are classified
BSFEZAW - as finance leases and have remaining lease terms ranging

from 1 to 5 years.

Hong Kong Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2001/2002
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28. HIBE W 2 BN E @) 28. HIRE PURCHASE CONTRACT

PAYABLES (continued)

MROEFEE=A=+—H > &HE
G ) 2 A B AR A L AR M LB

At 31 March 2002, the total future minimum lease payments

under hire purchase contracts and their present values were

R fEE T - as follows:
& Group
RIEEM AR REAT
HESH TR &5
ZBRREE ZBREE
BIEEA AR REAT Present Present
HELE TS &5 value of value of
Minimum Minimum minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments
2002 2001 2002 2001
FET THTC TERT THETT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
JEA FKIA Amounts payable:
—4EN Within one year 162 158 135 127
A In the second year 123 92 102 73
=B ILAE In the third to fifth
(& BB WA e 45 7E 1A) years, inclusive 88 120 68 96
AR ME A A B AL 1 Total minimum
SRR finance lease payments 373 370 305 296
A A 5 2 Future finance charges (68) (74)
JREAST A AR B 3k I Total net finance lease
PG payables 305 296
SIVE TR E & 5 Portion classified as
i current liabilities
(Ft5E26) (note 26) (135) (127)
RS Long term portion 170 169

T EH U SR 1498 R A BE R
R RCE M o REE B R MR 2 -
FAEREAEE TR ER - &
A B BB IS B 40T 40 B OR T R

Mo AR AE A -

SSAP 14 was revised and implemented during the year, as

detailed in note 2 to the financial statements. Certain new

disclosures are required and have been included above. The

prior year comparative amounts for the new disclosures have

also been included where appropriate.

F s/ ELEBA WA A -2001/2002 F
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31 March 2002

29. IR 29. SHARE CAPITAL
R Shares
2002 2001
TER T
HK$’000 HK$’000
BB Authorised:
3,000,000,000%5 B T (& 3,000,000,000 ordinary shares
0.10%5 IG5 4 i of HK$0.10 each 300,000 300,000
BT BB AR Issued and fully paid:
1,383,396,698 /% (. HE—4F : 1,383,396,698 (2001: 1,253,396,698)
1,253,396,698 %) 4 i i (H ordinary shares of 138,339 125,339

0.10%5 7T 2 35 78 i

HK$0.10 each

TAFERAR A R 2 B 84T A 2 S B i
2

A summary of movement in the issued share capital of the

Company during the year is as follows:

BEETR

ZEREE R

Number of  Issued and

ordinary shares fully paid

THEIT

HK$°000

B oEE—FENA—H At 1 April 2001 1,253,396,698 125,339
BSBR: S G YNGIE Y Shares issued on conversion of creditor

AT B A convertible note 130,000,000 13,000

W oEE FE=H=+—H At 31 March 2002 1,383,396,698 138,339

W H A - FETRE_H _TJLH
A ) BB AN T . 2 AR N A
Wh ik > A2 ) [ 2 S E N 3547 W] LA
75 1B 0. 109 70 2 A7 (i {8 b4 2 A 42 4
#F13,000,000%5 7T 2 fif BE A AT 46 254
R EBEEREN H AR H R
WE R 22 3 25 HoAthds 2 R A0 1% > ©R
TEBREP A b H A
ITEREN T H R - EREACIA
FTE—AENA =L HIEEREA %
JBE S 5 £ 130,000,000/8 45 20, 1035
TG 2 AR ) o

Pursuant to a creditor restructuring agreement dated on 29
February 2000, entered into between the Company and a
creditor, the Company agreed to issue the creditor a
convertible note in an aggregate principal sum of
HK$13,000,000 which could be convertible at an exercise
price of HK$0.10 per share. The creditor convertible note
was issued to the creditor on 27 April 2000 following the
approval by the shareholders on 25 April 2000 and the
fulfilment of certain other stipulated conditions. Such
creditor convertible note was converted by the creditor into
130,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the
Company on 27 April 2001.

Hong Kong Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2001/2002
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CEECHE=ZA=+—H
31 March 2002

29. HJN-:ZIK (#&) 29. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

B

A ) ST M R T (TRt o
RN S A 198 23 H [
JheHE st # ) A

RAEY) > MRE L AT #I 2L A 108,940,000
By ARA T 2 BB > R RTREA AT
NoEEZFERHATAAEFE—F
A H =AU H AT ] IR R SR A
T o AT I 45 I IR IR 7 S A5t
TR S o BRI B 1 B 0.460% 0T &
0.639% It (7] T F %) o

RARAERE > AR AR PR RZ w1 B A K
BEAT IR DL & S A 1 B AT A 3t
10,700,00085 /B4 o EL 8547 2 WS I RERS
FrRA AR - EE—FLH THE
S —TAEZH A —H R RE R
FRBEASS ALY o AT o 00 55 I A RE
Wr s AT AR E > SR I (E B 49 1 0.88
W0 2 1.06%5 0 (7] T FH %)

T4 7R S S0 R R A A B - SRRl

RHEEAH > RIEEEE > AAFE
119,640,000 17 Hif FEEHE 1 AR AT fd o 478
W —2FZFERH T AAEF—
ZHEZHZ—H > AT E b A
0.46%5 0 % 1.06¥ TG © FAA A HlRF 2
A G - A5 A BT W R AT 2 M
JREHE 6 B B8 47 49 0. 1095 I6 2 B AL
119,640,000/ A& #3171 AH B 2 Y 25 49
£479,205,000%5 I °

Share options

The Company operates a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”), further details of which are set out under the
heading “Share option scheme” in the Report of the

Directors on pages 19 to 23.

At the beginning of the year, there were 108,940,000 options
outstanding under the Scheme, which entitled the holders
to subscribe for shares of the Company at any time during
periods between 16 May 2000 and 29 October 2010. The
subscription prices payable upon the exercise of these
options range from HK$0.460 to HK$0.639 each, subject
to adjustment.

During the year, the Company granted a total of 10,700,000
share options under the Scheme for a nominal consideration
of HK$1 in total per grant. The share options granted entitle
the holders to subscribe for shares of the Company at any
time during periods between 10 July 2001 and 21 February
2012. The subscription prices per share payable upon the
exercise of these options range from HK$0.88 to HK$1.06

each, subject to adjustment.

No share options were exercised, lapsed or cancelled during

the year.

At the balance sheet date, the Company had 119,640,000
share options outstanding under the Scheme, with exercise
periods between 16 May 2000 and 21 February 2012 and
exercise prices ranging from HK$0.46 to HK$1.06 each.
The exercise in full of the remaining share options would,
under the present capital structure of the Company, result
in the issue of 119,640,000 additional shares of HK$0.10
each and proceeds of approximately HK$79,205,000.

F s/ ELEBA WA A -2001/2002 F
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31 March 2002

30. &

30. RESERVES

AEE Group
BABE FHE ERTBHE
RGRE Capital &1 BB Exchange RETER
Share redemption Capital  Contributed fluctuation Accumulated 5
premium reserve reserve surplus reserve losses Total
T T T T THTT TH#IT TH#IT
HKS$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HKS$°000 HKS$°000 HKS$°000 HKS$°000
e 2 22 e At 1 April 2000:
JUH—H :
T 5E AT 24 As previously reported 75,809 297 12,278 80,933 6 (319,762) (150,439)
LRI 4R B 3 Prior year adjustment:
T EH A SSAP 31 — impairment
3195 — w of goodwill
WAE (FHiE(a), (notes (a), 2 and 15)
2)%15) - - 773 - - (773) -
ER e As restated 75,809 297 13,051 80,933 6 (320,535) (150,439)
IR A&N Capital reduction - - - - = 47,759 47,759
BATIRA Issue of shares 67,000 - - = = = 67,000
BTG4 T Share issue expenses (2,427) - - - - - (2,427)
AR R TR R Net loss for the year = = = = - (15,296) (15,296)
= At 31 March 2001
=H=+—H (as restated)
(FEHTEI) 140,382 297 13,051 80,933 6 (288,072) (53,403)
e < S At 1 April 2001:
PHH—H :
e 2 As previously reported 140,382 297 12,278 80,933 6 (287,299) (53,403)
DL FTAF B R Prior year adjustment:
T Eps A SSAP 31 — impairment
ERIE A E of goodwill
WE (M (a), (notes (a), 2 and 15)
2¢15) - - 773 B B (773) -
BRI As restated 140,382 297 13,051 80,933 6 (288,072) (53,403)
AR L Ji 1 AR Net loss for the year - - - - - (19,559) (19,559)
/e St At 31 March 2002
=A=+—H 140,382 297 13,051 80,933 6 (307,631) (72,962)
Mt - Notes:
(@) &R A T Ml 1K B BT TE R 2 TR UK (a) Included in the retained profits movement for the year ended

(B V3 %8 49 773,000%5 70 2 i % 75 0 &
MNEE _FF—F=HA=+—HI
SR 2 AR BR Ui P A o 0 A S R
F M FE 15t 2 A o U T
MEMmMEE —EE—4ENA —H
Z Bt 18 5 E AR Al #9773,000%
= .

Hong Kong Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2001/2002

31 March 2001 was an adjustment to retrospectively
recognise an impairment in the amount of goodwill
remaining eliminated against consolidated reserves by
approximately HK$773,000. The effect of this adjustment
is to increase the accumulated losses and the capital reserve
as at 1 April 2001 by approximately HK$773,000, for the

reasons explained in note 15 to the financial statements.
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CEE H=ZH=+—H
31 March 2002

30. RESERVES (continued)

(b) AN T B B 4 R B A AR [ (b) Al the reserves of the Group were retained by the Company
it and its subsidiaries.
RAHE Company
BEXEE
&t
BB 10 E Capital BABE ZEtE#E
Share redemption Contributed Accumulated e
premium reserve surplus losses Total
T THTT THIT T#IT T
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000
W FERE At 1 April 2000
gy —H 75,809 297 78,810 (225,818) (70,902)
HI A Capital reduction - - - 47,759 47,759
BATIA Issue of shares 67,000 - - - 67,000
BEATRAREF Share issue expenses (2,427) - - - (2,427)
AAEFE SRR AR Net loss for the year - - = (133,631) (133,631)
AT EL—4 At 31 March 2001 and
—Z“H=1—H  beginning of year
JAER) 140,382 297 78,810 (311,690) (92,201)
AAEFEREIHTR A Net loss for the year - - - (28,712) (28,712)
AT EEL A At 31 March 2002
=H=+—H 140,382 297 78,810 (340,402) (120,913)

SR B 2 N L R IR AR S B DL
A 52 T AL P A I BB ) 2 A T
((EREETE L /N S S T -
i o

AN T Z B L8R 4R TR Y 2 FE AL
WS S A > ) S Ay 22 {3 L B 5 4
A w BT R AT o OE 2 2%
%E: o

The contributed surplus of the Group originally represented

the difference between the nominal value of the shares of

the former holding company of the Group acquired pursuant

to the Group reorganisation in the prior year, over the

nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange

therefor.

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the

excess of the fair value of the shares of the subsidiaries

acquired pursuant to the same reorganisation, over the

nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange

therefor.

F s/ ELEBA WA A -2001/2002 F
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Sl.ZEREREMWEE 31. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH
FLOW STATEMENT
(o) BEXBEHEHELEXETZ (a) Reconciliation of loss from operating activities
B2 7 FEE A & to net cash outflow from operating activities
AEH
Group
2002 2001

FTExT Tt
HK$’000  HKS$°000

KBRS 2 18 Loss from operating activities (17,224) (11,067)
FE A Interest income (2,611) (5,409)
EAiEZ BRI A Dividend income from listed investments (229) =
e Depreciation 5,449 2,514
PR Amortisation of goodwill 396 -
Al o0 A Amortisation of know-how 786 -
B bR B Loss on changes in fair values of

P x| short term listed investments 1,736 2,689
WK ETHE 2 ZF  Gain on disposal of short term listed investments - (1,403)
HAREWHELZ Deficit/(surplus) on revaluation of

WAE, (B ) investment properties 200 (1,299)
JRE W B 45/ R 3B 2 4l Provision for amount due from an associate 1,034 =
FEWCE 5 BRCR MR Provision for doubtful trade receivables 1,974 -
RIABE 2 WE A Provision for impairment in value of

long term investments - 2,000

Hh B i E 2 e 1R Loss on disposal of fixed assets 129 242
A TFHE=F 2 HE Write-back of residual purchase consideration

FRAB B B 135 0 payable to third parties (4,806) =
T A & A Write-back of rent and miscellaneous expenses

L AH 45 T M VL B S 3 [ payable on former director quarter (1,296) =
JH A TR 2 T 4 Write-back of remuneration and disbursements

YEAREAE payable to former directors (827) =
JRE ST R R R A8 A ] it Reversal of provision for doubtful receivables - (3,000)
JRE W B 5 MR Increase in trade receivables (6,469) (723)
e 23 Increase in inventories (1,474) (2,903)
TEAS SKTE ~ He 4 S A Decrease/(increase) in prepayments,

JEMCRIE Y (38 m) deposits and other receivables 1,734 (2,705)
JRESC v [ 42 JE 2 ) Increase in amounts due from

FRIE N intermediate holding companies (6,120) (2,118)
JREAT 8 5 A TE e SRR 4 Increase in trade and bills payables 1,872 1,059
HoAREAT K EFTEIEL > Decrease in other payables and accruals (2,209) (3,400)
JREAST e [ 422 JE 24 ) Decrease in amount due to an

I D intermediate holding company - (988)
JREASH i = 3T g D Decrease in amount due to a director - (160)
JREAST i 20 BB 3R Increase/(decrease) in amount due to a former

FIERE I, (D) minority shareholder (163) 163
MW 2 B AT FAE  Net cash outflow from operating activities (28,118) (26,508)
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Notes to Financial Statements
SEFCESH S0
31 March 2002

3. MEBREREMT @ 31. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH
FLOW STATEMENT (continued)
b)) FABMEZEEE 5 (b) Analysis of changes in financing activities
during the year
ERTRAE HBENZ
(BER G EE) RITR FERFIE
Issued capital Hi a3 Hire DHIRE
(including ARG Bank purchase =
share Contributed and other contract Minority
premium) surplus  borrowings payables interests

THIT THIT THIT THIT THIT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000

R EEERF At 1 April 2000

MmH—H 135,507 80,933 61,479 290 -
LN E: Subsidiary acquired
Ri$ o A ) during the year = = 36,367 = 21,816
Il e A Capital reduction (47,759) = = = =
BT ERE A W% Issue of creditor
JEEEPELIFESS  convertible note to
JEATE ZEKIH  offset a trade payable - = 13,000 = =
Rl T ) 2 Cash inflow/(outflow)
BamA from financing
(it ) {F48 activities, net 177,973 = 24,006 (244) =
IV A4 Inception of hire
purchase contracts - - - 250 -
AT FE—4 At 31 March 2001 and
—Z“H=1—H  beginning of year
KAFEH) 265,721 80,933 134,852 296 21,816
JAAE RS Subsidiary acquired
Rt A during the year = = 3,760 79 1,179
DB R TSI Non-cash capital
BB A contribution by a
minority shareholder - - - - 6,580
IIEAAE Share of losses for
[-7Eic the year = = = = (3,617)
T fEREA Creditor convertible note
CIE &8 exercised 13,000 = (13,000) = =
BT A T4 Issue of new convertible
il notes = = 12,254 = =
Pl T ) . Cash inflow/(outflow)
BERA from financing
() W3 AE activities, net = = 8,317 (141) 7,619
I BG4 Inception of a hire
purchase contract - - - 71 -
N BB AR At 31 March 2002
Z=H=1+—H 278,721 80,933 146,183 305 33,577

F s/ ELEBA WA A -2001/2002 F
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Notes to Financial Statements

CEEHEZHA=+—H
31 March 2002

3. ZEBEREN T @) 31. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH
FLOW STATEMENT (continued)

o TEHFE2XS (c) Major non-cash transactions
G WERN > AN FRRAE (i) During the year, the Company acquired a
15,254,4004% 7T B A Wi il — subsidiary in the PRC for a consideration of
IR A FEH12,254,400 HK$15,254,400, of which HK$12,254,400 was
W5 0 R AR 2 W 84T AT 4 i 5 satisfied by the issue of convertible notes of the
BAT - Company.
() RoEZ—FMNA_-+L (ii) On 27 April 2001, a creditor of the Company
H > AL 2 AEHE SR e exercised its conversion rights under the creditor
UNGIE; Sl IR ey g convertible note to convert the convertible note
#:2.130,000,000/BE55 0. 1035 into 130,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10
JCZ AN T I each in the Company.
(d) WEEH B LA (d) Acquisition of a subsidiary
2002 2001

FHT Tl
HK$°000 HK$°000

Wi 2 B VRE - Net assets acquired:
VS NG E Interests in associates - 3,788
[ o Fixed assets 1,764 71,162
SRR Long term investments - 1,175
T G Intangible assets - 20,829
i Goodwill 1,507 —
4 R RATAT 3K Cash and bank balances 897 3,261
& Inventories 7,345 3,227
JEN K ) Bk Trade receivables 1,276 2918
TASTRRIE ~ $eds B HoAth Prepayments, deposits
JRE Wk TE and other receivables 5,656 1,653
JEAST & 2 B Trade payables (2,318) (503)
A B AT B R 3K I Other payables and accruals (9,991) (20,408)
JEATAR 5 4 HR 3K Hire purchase contract payables (79) -
SRAT R > AR Bank loans, unsecured (3,760) (28,200)
HAERK - KR Other loans, unsecured - (8,167)
YRR A Minority interests 1,179) (21,816)
1,118 28,919
WA i A P Goodwill on acquisition 14,136 5,939
HUAE Consideration 15,254 34,858
AT Satisfied by:
B& Cash 3,000 32,553
A (BfF3E31(c)())  Convertible notes (note 31(c)(i)) 12,254 =
Wi i AR 2 M TR Incidental acquisition costs - 2,305
15,254 34,858

Hong Kong Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2001/2002
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Notes to Financial Statements

CEE H=ZH=+—H
31 March 2002

31. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH

FLOW STATEMENT (continued)

(d) WIEK B A E ) (d) Acquisition of a subsidiary (continued)
I 7 A T S ) 2 B 4 B B 4 An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash
AHEE W) 2 i A AT AR equivalents in respect of the acquisition of a subsidiary
is as follows:

2002 2001

FERT THs T

HK$°000 HK$°000

Wil 2 B 4 M SRAT AR Cash and bank balances acquired 897 3,261
BlaRUE Cash consideration (3,000) (34,858)

WS e g A ) 2 B 4 T Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents

BLEAHSE ) 2 T TR AR in respect of the acquisition of a subsidiary (2,103) (31,597)

32.

TR A R A 2 A 7 ) 3 AR 4 [ AR 4
B2 BlE R B SR BB
it /il 2 5 6 e 4R 0 e R F -

REFFZHEZA=+—H > AAH
AG T2 T B A B 2 RlCE I ) 4R AT
1E Hi #147,586,000% TG (—FF —4F
#150,487,0095 70) Z A& - A BRNE A
E B 3 A £945,150,000% 76 (=& F—
A #)47,817,000% IC6) ©

R ESCRT#ERSb > AR H AR S B 5
A 7% ) St AT AT K AR B AR -

32.

The subsidiary acquired during the year made no significant
contribution to the Group in respect of the cash flows,
turnover and consolidated loss before minority interests for

the year.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2002, the Company had given guarantees
of approximately HK$47,586,000 (2001: approximately
HK$50,487,000) to banks in connection with facilities
granted to certain subsidiaries. The facilities were utilised
to the extent of approximately HK$45,150,000 (2001:
approximately HK$47,817,000).

Save as disclosed above, neither the Group, nor the
Company, had any significant contingent liabilities as at

the balance sheet date.

F s/ ELEBA WA A -2001/2002 F
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Notes to Financial Statements
CE®ECHE=ZH=+—H
31 March 2002

33. REBENZTHE 33. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
(@ 1EZHAEA (a) As lessor

AN 2 B AR A0 L 4 & Bt AL
BEYE (RIFREMEEL3) -
RERER 2 ALK AN F25 54 -
FHATR K — MRS € ZoRFH % A
TRaE 4 o

REFEZEZA=F—H £
SR AR R BLAR % 5T S T 51T ER
Jek 98 - A T A 2 LA AR AR B

The Group leases its investment properties (note 13
to the financial statements) under operating lease
arrangements, with leases negotiated for terms ranging
from 2 to 5 years. The terms of the leases generally

also require the tenants to pay security deposits.

At 31 March 2002, the Group had total future
minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable

operating leases with its tenants falling due as follows:

fRAEN AL & BB T -

rEH

Group
2002 2001
FERT AR
HK$°000 HK$°000
—4F N Within one year 1,966 1,831

BB NE (HREME  In the second to fifth years,
HFETEN) inclusive 1,524 3,343
3,490 5,174
(b) fERREA (b) As lessee

7 S5 [ 4R B 4 7 AH 4 2 HE R R
TN EWE o KEET 2 WM
AR A T 12 204 o

Hong Kong Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2001/2002

The Group leases certain of its office properties under
operating lease arrangements. Leases for properties

are negotiated for terms ranging from 1 to 20 years.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SEFCAEZA =t

31 March 2002

33. REHENZTH @) 33. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(continued)

(b) 1EREREA (&)
RoBEAEZAStH A
B2 ] ] A F AR B TR 51 4 PR
T 2 A ] R 48 FHL 4 2 R A

(b) As lessee (continued)
At 31 March 2002, the Group and the Company had
total future minimum lease payments under non-

cancellable operating leases falling due as follows:

I ASHAH B AR AN R -
rEE ARNF]
Group Company
2002 2001 2002 2001
FET THTC FTERT THE T
HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
(FEH 251) (EH251)
(Restated) (Restated)
—4EN Within one year 11,836 8,158 2,306 900
E_RERF In the second to fifth
(& B aiEE A) years, inclusive 16,636 10,070 2,707 2,518
TLAFEAR After five years 12,548 - - =
41,020 18,228 5,013 3,418

AR AR BE R AN 2 @ wh B0 U HI 26 14958
(BRAEFT) > M EMA 2 A H
P A ] B A A 4 2 R AR A AR e
IRl A8 - FEIE R B SCREE(a) » B
N7 40 A B O B OR o G RS UE RIS
1455 (FEAERT) IR e S8 FLA) 2 AR L
N JE B 8 R A o {1 A L 4 B > i
37 I 5 Hi BT R (4 E T — 4R R 2
R4 o BRIL > b SCRf % (b) B A& i
N3 D4R B AR LA L 2 R
HIUFEAEEZ 2RI -

SSAP 14 (Revised), which was adopted during the year,
requires lessors under operating leases to disclose the total
future minimum operating lease receivables under non-
cancellable operating leases, as detailed in note (a) above.
This disclosure was not previously required. SSAP 14
(Revised) also requires lessees under operating leases to
disclose the total future minimum operating lease payments,
rather than only the payments to be made during the next
year as was previously required. Accordingly, the prior year
comparative amounts for operating leases as lessee in note
(b) above have been restated to accord with the current year’s

presentation.

F s/ ELEBA WA A -2001/2002 F
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CEEHEZHA=+—H
31 March 2002

34, EIE

R b SCH RE33(b) I o At 2 848 FH 7K
Hehh - AEBIRGA B ZARIEMT

(a) CLRTAIZ AR - (HORMERM -

34. COMMITMENTS

In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in
note 33(b) above, the Group had the following commitments

as at the balance sheet date:

(a) Capital commitments contracted, but not provided for

in respect of:

&

Group
2002 2001
TER THT
HK$’000 HK$°000
b R A Land and building 445 2,037
N— B A 7 2 EA TR Capital contribution to a subsidiary in the PRC 1,880 6,895
1R, - He B Rt Furniture, fixtures and equipment 120 1,691
2,445 10,623

(b) CRHEZEARYE  HARFTH

(b) Capital commitments authorised, but not yet

contracted for in respect of:

rE
Group
2002 2001
FHT TH#IT
HKS$°000 HK$’000
FIEMF RS2 B Donations to various research funds 8,420 8,420

[ BELFXRS

(@) FAAEIN > 2 R Tin Ming,
R I A I 6,120,000
JG o B AR R B R R R
UE - WERHR _EZ_FE=H
ZAHNHE > BEAXR DR E
EREXE R =F = =
+—H R-FF_HFELA-+
—_H > Tin MingE % 612,000%5
JC o MERFR ZFEF=F=H
= — H B Ao 2 o

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) During the year, unsecured loans of HK$6,120,000 in
aggregate were made to Tin Ming, an intermediate
holding company. The amount bears interest at prime
rate plus 1% per annum. The amount was due on 28
March 2002 but the Company has agreed to extend
the repayment date to 31 March 2003. On 22 July
2002, Tin Ming settled HK$612,000 with the
remaining balance to be settled on or before 31 March
2003 by 2 instalments.

Hong Kong Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2001/2002
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35. BERFR S @)

(b)

(©

(d)

RN > AN ZHIEAF > B
] 3 PR 503,000,000 A B HE T 85
NI 2 D HRR > B EER o
18T 85 M BR R 2 853K 2% LA
B By 6 S JH R BT AN
H G HER - B> BUR R EKIE
EL LS AT S ~ e S A e
WK o

HELHEH > MitHong Tau
Investment Ltd. ([ Hong Taul) Z
FXIE #12,118,000%5 7T 75 Hong Tau
B T A 2 S
FAABA S o FRIANG AL S S o

AR —FEAE= Z+/\H
2> AARA R EREERER
WE_FE=HF=A=+—H-

W_FEZ_HFELtAZ+H -

Hong TauEl i #£212,000%5 7T > T
BEMR —FE=F=A=1—
H 58 2§ 4> 28 % -

AERN > —RAAFZEFR &
WEds A M AR 2 A ]
YN TR R A RA R -
A T — B A | 2 SR AT B
) — BRI TR AR - R F
FToE=A=+—H  ZHTE
3K 330,000,000 A R H o

Notes to Financial Statements

CEECHE=ZA=+—H
31 March 2002

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(b)

(©

(d)

During the year, YZ Genetic, a subsidiary of the
Company, has made a loan amounting to
RMB3,000,000 to YZ Energy, a minority shareholder
of YZ Genetic. The amount lent to YZ Energy is
unsecured, bearing interest at 6% per annum and is
repayable on 7 June 2002. The amount due from
minority shareholder is included in prepayments,

deposits and other receivables.

As at the balance sheet date, an amount of
approximately HK$2,118,000 was due from Hong
Tau Investment Ltd. (“Hong Tau”) representing the
sharing of the financial restructuring costs by Hong
Tau in 2000. The amount is unsecured and interest-
free. The amount was due on 28 March 2002 but the
Company has agreed to extend the repayment date to
31 March 2003. On 22 July 2002, Hong Tau settled
approximately HK$212,000 with the remaining
balance to be settled on or before 31 March 2003 by 2

instalments.

During the year, Shenzhen Delu Investment Limited,
a company in which a director of the Company, Mr.
Sun Hiu Lu, has significant influence, has provided a
guarantee in favour of a bank for a bank loan granted
to a subsidiary of the Company amounting to
RMB30,000,000 as at 31 March 2002.

F s/ ELEBA WA A -2001/2002 F
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36.

37.

b8 & 8

A S R R B 2 RE AR
A B R A T eT MACERT 2 &
FEECBSYERN > MBS IRGR A THA &
KR G EHE Tk Rk 2577 EAR
B IATERBE o Rt - DUAT4FE
O TR s T B O E
HMABUMGGAEEZ 28T -

BB HER i

WMHHRFER _FEZ_FLH 1Y
F % 25 = o 41t o B IR A B -

36.

37.

COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

As further explained in note 2 to the financial statements,
due to the adoption of certain new and revised SSAPs during
the current year, the accounting treatment and presentation
of certain items and balances in the financial statements
have been revised to comply with the new requirements.
Accordingly, certain prior year adjustments have been made
and certain comparative amounts have been reclassified to

conform with the current year’s presentation.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the board of directors on 24 July 2002.
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